) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 20"" DAY OF AUGUST, 2018

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN the Board of Education of Kenilworth School District No. 38,
Cook County, Illinois will hold a regular meeting on the 20" day of August, 2018 at 4:30 p.m.,
for the closed session meeting in Room 258 and at 7:30 p.m. for the open session in the Library
Technology Center of The Joseph Sears School, 542 Abbotsford Road, Kenilworth, Illinois.

Room 258 (Closed Session — 4:30 p.m.)

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
Present Absent Present Absent
Mindy Kelly Suzanne Nelson
Danielle Boros Melissa Ross
John Gottschall Scott Wallace

Donna Keller

I1. CLOSED SESSION TO CONSIDER INFORMATION REGARDING SPECIFIC
EMPLOYEE MATTERS

Library Technology Center (Open Session — 7:30 p.m.)

III. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Present Absent Present Absent
Mindy Kelly Suzanne Nelson
Danielle Boros Melissa Ross
John Gottschall Scott Wallace

Donna Keller

IV.  PUBLIC COMMENT (See posted Rules of Public Comment)

V. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS

A. Freedom of Information Act Requests

B. Report from the Superintendent
> Discussion of FY19 Committee Structure and Dates
> Discussion of FY19 Community Engagement Events
> Discussion of FY'19 State of the District
> Discussion of The Joseph Sears School Community Advisory Committee

Proposal

C. Report from the Chief School Business Official

> Accounts Payable Review

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



VI

VIIL.

VIII.

IX.

X.

XI.

THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

D.
E.

F.

> Monthly Financials

> Discussion of FY'18 Proposed Budget
Report from the Chief Education Officer
Report from the Director of Student Services
Report from the Interim Principal

> Review of 2018-2019 Student Enrollment

CONSENT AGENDA

>

B.
C.
D.

>0 EOEMEmUOW

Approval of Minutes from the May 16, 2018 Personnel Committee Meeting and
Closed Session

Approval of Minutes from the May 24, 2018 Special Meeting and Closed Session
Approval of Minutes from the June 18, 2018 Regular Meeting and Closed Session
Approval of Minutes from the July 10, 2018 Special Meeting and Closed Session
Approval of Minutes from the July 23, 2018 Special Meeting and Closed Session
Approval of Minutes from the August 14, 2018 Special Meeting and Closed Session
Approval of Monthly Financial Report for June 2018

Approval of Investment Report for June 2018

LD BUSINESS

Discussion of and Potential Approval of Board’s 2018-2019 Commitee of the Whole
Meeting Schedule

Discussion of Vision Statement and Next Steps

Presentation of Strategic Implementation Plan, Objectives and Indicators

Discussion of FY'18 Annual Report Publication

NEW BUSINESS

A.
B.

C.

Adopt the Proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Budget and Approve a Public Hearing
Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendations to Hire Mr. Jonathan
Quijada as 1.0FTE Custodian

Board Committee Reports including Comments and Questions

OTHER BUSINESS

PUBLIC COMMENT (See attached Rules of Public Comment)

ADJOURNMENT

Dated the 17" day of August, 2018.

Chike Erokwu
Secretary, Board of Education

Kenilworth School District No. 38

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Date: August 20, 2018

Re:  Superintendent’s Report

Discussion of FY19 Committee Structure and Dates

Based on board feedback and follow up discussion with Board President, Mrs. Kelly, we will
continue the current Committee of the Whole Structure for the 2018-2019 school year. As a
reminder, under this structure, all board members are equally informed and involved in all board
member discussions. In effort to ensure the full board discussions are informative and
productive, the board liaisons will facilitate research between board meetings. As additional
information becomes available, liaisons will provide update to entire board. The primary purpose
of the Committee of the Whole model is to promote efficiency of time and communication
between the full board.

Following the same schedule as last year, I would like to propose the following:

Committee of the Whole Meeting Schedule

Wednesday, October 17,2018
Thursday, January 31,2019
Thursday, March 7, 2019

Thursday, May 2, 2019

Discussion of Community Engagement
At tonight’s meeting, I would like to discuss the following potential opportunities for community
engagement:

Community Forums
* The next community forum opportunity will be at the State of the District forum in
October.

Second Cup of Coffees
* The Cabinet is collaborating on the timing and topics for the first half of the year

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

State of the District
* Tonight, we will discuss proposed dates and times for the State of the District forum.
* Tonight, we will discuss last year’s format and communications.
Joseph Sears School Community Advisory Committee
* Included in the packet is a copy of The Joseph Sears School Community Advisory
Committee proposal.

Discussion of the State of District

The Board of Education will present the annual State of the District at the October Committee of
the Whole Meeting, which is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, October 17, 2018. We will
provide an overview and update of the District, followed by an open forum to include audience
participation. The following is a brief outline of the program:

* Introduction of Board Members/Administration

¢ State of the District

¢ Community Forum (Questions and Answer Session)
* Closing Remarks

We will ensure this event is communicated to parents and community members through the
following:

e 2017-2018 Annual Publication

* Sears to Home

* Faculty Files

* District Communication

¢ Community Communication

* District Website

* Village Newsletter

* Direct Communication to local Kenilworth Organizations

Additionally, the actual state of the district address will be recorded, posted to the website and
shared with parents in board briefs.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Date: August 20, 2018

Re:  The Joseph Sears School Community Advisory Committee
Purpose

The Joseph Sears School Community Advisory Committee (JSSCAC) was created to provide
Sears community members and organizations with a public forum to listen to and share
perspectives on significant matters related to The Joseph Sears School. The JSSCAC shall
collectively weigh and discuss information related to community engagement, new or potential
initiatives and school operations in order to generate discussion which will be used by the
Superintendent to make informed decisions in the interests of the greater Kenilworth community.

Membership

L

IIL.

I1I.

In order to efficiently and effectively fulfill its purpose, JSSCAC membership shall
consist of a broad composition of Sears community members and organizations.
The JSSCAC will consist of no more than 25 total members. If the number of interested
members exceeds 25, membership will be determined at the discretion of the
Superintendent with the selection criteria based on ensuring a broad cross-section of
stakeholder interests are represented throughout the committee.
The JSSCAC shall consist of at least one (1) representative from each of the following:
A. Community Members

1. Joseph Sears School Parents/Guardians (6)

2. Joseph Sears School Faculty/Staff (2)

3. Joseph Sears School Alumni (2)

4. Kenilworth Board of Education (1)

5. Students (As needed)
B. Community Organizations

1. Kenilworth Residents without Children at Sears (3)

2. Joseph Sears School Parents’ Volunteer Association (1)

3. Sears School Booster Club (1)

4. Kenilworth Park District (1)

5. Village of Kenilworth (1)

6. Kenilworth Police Department (1)

7. The Kenilworth Council of Garden Clubs (1)

8. Kenilworth Historical Society (1)

9. League of Women Voters (1)

10. Kenilworth Boy Scouts of America Troop 13 Leadership (1)

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



IV.

VL

VIL

VIIL.

IX.

THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

11. Kenilworth Girl Scouts Leadership (1)
12. Area Realtor (1)

The JSSCAC is a committee composed of representatives throughout the entire school
community. Any resident who lives within Kenilworth School District No. 38 boundaries
or any employee of Kenilworth School District No. 38 is eligible to become a member of
the JSSAC.

All interested and eligible candidates for JSSCAC membership must be able to verify
they are active members of a community group or organization while seated on the
JSSCAC.

All interested and eligible candidates for JSSCAC membership belonging to a
community group with more than two (2) JSSCAC representative seats may submit a
letter of interest to the attention of Superintendent no later than two (2) weeks prior to the
first announced JSSCAC meeting of the school year.

Selection of interested and eligible JSSCAC candidates belonging to a community group
with more than two (2) JSSCAC representative seats is done at the discretion of the
Superintendent. The Superintendent shall make every effort to ensure each community
group is inclusive of a variety of perspectives and interests.

All JSSCAC members belonging to a community group with more than two (2) JSSCAC
representative seats must commit to a two-year term of service at the time of their
appointment.

Any community group or organization with one (1) JSSCAC representative seat may
appoint one member to sit on the JSSCAC.

Meetings

L

The JSSCAC will meet three times each school year. Meetings will take place in the fall,
winter and spring.

Tentative Agenda and Topics of Discussion

Fall 2018 -- September 26

Topics of Discussion:

Introduction and Committee Orientation
Discussion of District Vision and Strategic Plan
Discussion of Portrait of Sears School Graduate
Open Topics of Discussion

Winter 2019 February 13

Topics of Discussion:

Discussion of Master Facilities Planning

Discussion of Village House

Discussion of Principal Search (involvement in interview process)
Open Topics of Discussion

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



[ ) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Spring 2019 - May 8
Topic of Discussion:
+ Review of Community Social Engagement Event
» Review and Discussion of SY18-19 Community Engagement Events
+ Presentation of Potential Community Engagement Initiatives for SY19-20
* Open Topics of Discussion

Timeline:

Date Event

August 20, 2018 Present JSSCAC proposal to Kenilworth Board of Education

August 27,2018 Dr. LeRoy begins reaching out to Kenilworth community organizations
for participation in the JSSCAC

September 4, 2018 | A postcard mailing is sent out to the entire Kenilworth community
inviting participation in JSSCAC

September 18, 2018 | Deadline for submitting optional letter of interest in the JSSCAC

September 24, 2018 | Dr. LeRoy announces JSSCAC membership candidates at the
Kenilworth Board of Education meeting.

September 26, 2018 | First JSSCAC meeting (6 p.m. to 8 p.m.)

February 13,2019 | Second JSSCAC meeting (6 p.m. to 8 p.m.)

May 8, 2019 Third JSSCAC meeting (6 p.m. to 8 p.m.)

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Date: August 20, 2018

Re:  Chief School Business Official’s Report

Monthly Financials
For your review, attached is copy of the June 2018 Monthly Financials.

The July Financials will be presented to the Board of Education next week and included on the
September Consent Agenda.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



[ ) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Date: August 20, 2018

Re:  Proposed Fiscal Year 2019 Budget

Background

In order to abide by Truth in Taxation Statues and adhere to a reasonable budget calendar, it is
necessary for the Board of Education to consider the adoption of a tentative budget at this time.
These laws require the Board of Education to approve a tentative budget for public display at least
30 days prior to adopting a final budget and also require a public budget hearing to be held prior to
final adoption. Adopting the tentative budget this evening will allow ample time to display the
budget and announce a September public hearing, as more than thirty days separate the regular
August and September board meetings. The following outlines the FY 19 Budget Calendar:

Budget Meeting Dates: Topics of Discussion

August 11, 2018 FY19 Draft Tentative Budget Submitted to Building and
Finance Chairs for Review

August 17,2018 FY19 Draft Tentative Budget Submitted to Board of
Education for Review

August 20, 2018 Review and Approval of Tentative FY'19 Budget
Publish Notice of Budget for Public
Display and Announcement of Public Hearing

September 24, 2018 Public Hearing for FY19 Budget
Approval of FY'19 Budget

September 28, 2018 Filing Deadline for FY'19 Budget

November 12, 2018 Estimate of 2018 Levy

Approval of 2018 Levy Public Hearing Announcement

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Presentation of FY 18 Audit
Acceptance of FY 18 Audit
Public Hearing for 2018 Levy
Approval of 2018 Levy
Five-Year Financial Projections

December 12, 2018

December 28, 2018 Last Day to File 2018 Levy

Fiscal Year 2018 Year End Budget

The following table outlines the end of year expenditures for FY18. As you can see, the actuals came
in under budget at 82.55% of the FY 19 Budget.

2017-2018 Budget 2017-2018 %
Budget Balance YTD Received

Expenditures by Object
Salaries 7,612,298.49 153,095.63 7,459,202.86 97.99%
Benefits 1,639,104.81 -103,474.08 1,742,578.89 106.31%
Purchased Services 1,244,142.69 -326,978.42 1,571,121.11 126.28%
Supplies 746,246.58 -48,621.74 794,868.32 106.52%
Capital Outlay 3,543,181.14 3,138,096.95 405,084.19 11.43%
Other Expenses 1,337,008.71 1,627.21 1,335,381.50 99.88%
Total Expenditures - All Funds 16,121,982.42 2,813,745.55 13,308,236.87 82.55%

* Salaries (Surplus of $153,095)
o Salaries expenditures are within 2.0% of budget. The surplus is primarily due to the
decrease in long-term substitute coverage positions, use of internal employees for
substitute coverage and a decrease in overall substitute costs.

* Benefits (Deficit of $103,474)

o Health Insurance was over budget by 6.0%. As a reminder, in the fall, the
Instructional Assistants were added to the District’s health insurance policy.
Additionally there was an overall increase in employee usage of the District’s health
insurance benefits.

* Purchased Services (Deficit of $326,978)

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

o The majority of the deficit is primarily due to a combination of unbudgeted
expenditures in Board Legal Fees, Architect Fees, Consultant and Professional

Development.

* Supplies (Deficit of $48,621)
o The deficit is primarily due to the new English Language Arts curriculum purchase.

* Capital Outlay (Surplus of $3,138,096)
o $3,000,000 budgeted for future facility projects.
o $200,000 in annual maintenance projects placed on hold pending future facility

projects.

* Other Expenses (Surplus of $1,627.21)
o Other expenses are within .12% of budget.

The following table outlines the end of year revenues for FY18. As you can see, the actuals came in
very close to budget at 101.66% of the budgeted revenues.

2017-2018

Proposed Budget 2017-2018 %
Budget Balance YTD Received

Revenues by Source
Tax Levy 12,573,048.48 27,122.69  12,545,925.79 99.78%
Other Local Revenue 456,021.10 -80,506.95 536,528.05 117.65%
State Revenue 188,863.23 -203,708.86 392,572.09 207.86%
Federal Revenue 136,000.00 35,050.27 100,949.73 74.23%

Total Operating Revenues - All Funds 13,353,932.81 -222,042.85 13,575,975.66 101.66%

Other Financial Sources (Bond Proceeds) 0.00 -3,497,829.20 3,497,829.20

* Budgeting for revenue at the state and federal level continues to be a challenge. The federal
allotment came in below budget at 74%, while the state revenues came in over budget by

107%.
* The surplus in other local revenue was due to an additional $120,000 in unanticipated interest,

primarily as a result of the bond proceeds.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Fiscal Year 2019 Proposed Budget

Fiscal year 2018 ended with an estimated surplus of $267,738.79 instead of a budgeted deficit of
$2,768,049.61. This surplus is primarily due to future facility projects. The budget included an
allotment of $3.3M in the event that we were able to begin project work during the 2017-2018 school
year. The budget also included bond proceeds for approximately $3.2M issued for the purpose of
facility projects. In collaboration with the Building and Finance Liaisons, I will continue to research
the most practical and cost efficient projects that align with the instructional needs of the District’s

Strategic Plan. This allotment will be reestablished for fiscal year 2019. The following outlines the
FY19 Proposed Budget:

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL

Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

2017-2018 2017-2018 Proposed % Increase/
Proposed Unaudited 2018-2019 Decrease from
Budget Actuals Budget FY18 to FY19
Revenues by Source

Tax Levy 12,573,048.48 12,545,925.79 12,676,064.00 1.04%
Other Local Revenue 456,021.10 536,528.05 478,822.16 -10.76%
State Revenue 188,863.23 392,572.09 390,000.00 -0.66%
Federal Revenue 136,000.00 100,949.73 100,000.00 -0.94%
Total Operating Revenues - All Funds 13,353,932.81 13,575,975.66 13,644,886.16 -11.31%
Other Financial Sources (Bond Proceeds) 0.00 3,497,829.20 0.00
2017-2018 2017-2018 Proposed % Increase/
Proposed Unaudited 2018-2019 Decrease from
Budget Actuals Budget FY18 to FY19

Expenditures by Object
Salaries 7,612,298.49 7,459,202.86 8,096,570.97 8.54%
Instructional Staff (10-Month) 6,275,000.00 6,235,128.96 6,484,534.12 4.00%
Support Staff (12- Month) 450,000.00 443,314.94 461,047.54 4.00%
Administration 495,000.00 488,798.00 683,349.92 39.80%
Other Salaries 392,298.49 291,960.96 467,639.39 60.17%
Benefits 1,639,104.81 1,742,578.89 1,854,707.83 6.43%
Pensions 425,000.00 417,162.23 438,020.34 5.00%
Health Insurance 1,178,301.80 1,272,424.10 1,348,769.55 6.00%
Other Benefits 35,803.01 52,992.56 67,917.94 28.17%
Purchased Services 1,244,142.69 1,571,121.11 1,618,254.74 3.00%
Technology Consultant 131,000.00 234,049.59 138,071.08 -41.01%
Architect Fees 60,129.54 169,470.44 300,000.00 77.02%
Board Legal 27,466.86 109,164.62 68,000.00 -37.71%
Other (Annual Maintenance) 1,025,546.29 1,058,436.46 1,112,183.66 5.08%
Supplies 746,246.58 794,868.32 818,714.37 3.00%
Capital Outlay 3,543,181.14 405,084.19 3,600,000.00 788.70%
Other Expenses 1,337,008.71 1,335,381.50 1,402,150.58 5.00%
Total Expenditures - All Funds 16,121,982.42 13,308,236.87 17,390,398.49 801.78%

Excess or (Deficit) Revenues
Over Expenditures

Budget as of July 1st

Budgeted Fund Balance - June 30th

-2,768,049.61

19,628,441.44

16,860,391.83

267,738.79

19,628,441.44

23,394,009.43

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

-3,745,512.33

23,394,009.43

19,648,497.09



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

FY19 Proposed Final Budget Assumptions and Notes

The FY'19 Proposed Final Budget reflects the following budget assumptions and notes:

Revenue Budget Assumptions and Notes

Tax Levy (+1.04%)
* Assumes CPI increase, estimated new growth and property tax refunds.

Other Local (-10.76%)
e Assumes a decrease in interest earned based on a decrease in revenue.

State Revenue (-0.66%)
* Assumes a slight decrease in state funding.

Federal Revenue (-0.94%)
* Assumes a slight decrease in federal funding

Other Financial Sources (+/-0%)
* No other financial sources are anticipated for FY19

Expenditure Budget Assumptions and Notes

Salaries (+8.54%)

* Salaries are based on the current faculty and staff projections, plus a potential 1.0, should we
break a section.

* Includes in increase in overall FTE’s including one administrative and two instructional
assistant positions.

* Includes additional other salaries for anticipated FMLA substitute coverage.

e Salary projections will be revised based on actual employment prior to the September budget
hearing.

Benefits (+6.43%)
e Assumes Medical Premium increase of 5%
e Assumes Dental Increase of 5%

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

* Assumes continued increase in usage of District health benefits.

Purchased Services (+3%)
* Assumes annual service/maintenance agreement increases of 3%

Supplies (+3%)
* Assumes a 3.0% increase in supplies

Capital Outlay (+48.12% without facility project costs)
* Reflects $3,000,000 allotment to cover potential facility projects.
* Reflects $400,000 in annual facility/maintenance projects. Some annual maintenance has been
suspended until future facility projects have been determined.

Other Expenses (+5.0%)
* Assumes a 5.0% increase in out of placement tuition costs.

Summary

You will notice the FY 19 Budget reflects an overall deficit of $3.7M. This is a planned deficit to
cover the costs for the District’s potential facility projects. Without the facility projects, the FY19
Budget would be balanced.

Future Considerations
* The District is currently in the process of developing a Master Facility Plan. The goal is to
have this plan reviewed and approved by the Board of Education by December 2018.
* The potential shift in teacher pension costs to local school districts.

The Administration believes this is a sound representation of the financial position of the District and
therefore recommends your favorable approval of the FY 19 Proposed Budget.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



KENILWORTH ScHOOL DisTrICT NO. 38

Investment Certification Statement

All investments listed with PMA (ISDLAF) comply with the Kenilworth School District No. 38
Investment Policy.

Dr. Cryéal LeRoy ‘

Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Kenilworth School District # 38

August 20, 2018
Date

Kenilworth District No. 38 542 Abbotsford Road Kenilworth, Illinois 60043  Phone 847-256-5006 Fax 847-256-4418

www .kenilworth38.org



Kenilworth School District 38

Investment Balances
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019 |:| Subtotal by Collapse Mask

[ Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

From Date:

6/1/2018

To Date:

6/30/2018
|:| Include pre encumbrance |:| Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

Account Number Description GL Budget  Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance  Budget Balance % Bud
10.0000.0103.000.00.501 PMA - Liquid General Fund $0.00 $2,169,317.72 $2,169,317.72 ($2,169,317.72) $0.00 ($2,169,317.72) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.502 PMA - Max General Fund $0.00 $3,608,289.17 $3,608,289.17 ($3,608,289.17) $0.00 ($3,608,289.17) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.503 PMA - Onewest Bank 12/2014 $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.512 PMA - Sonabank 12/2014 $0.00 $245,000.00 $245,000.00 ($245,000.00) $0.00 ($245,000.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.543 PMA - Bank of the West Exp 7/2 $0.00 $245,200.00 $245,200.00 ($245,200.00) $0.00 ($245,200.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.547 PMA - Discover Bank Certificat $0.00 $248,000.00 $248,000.00 ($248,000.00) $0.00 ($248,000.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.551 PMA - Farmers & Merchants Unio $0.00 $245,300.00 $245,300.00 ($245,300.00) $0.00 ($245,300.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.552 PMA - Fieldpoint Private Bank $0.00 $245,700.00 $245,700.00 ($245,700.00) $0.00 ($245,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.558 PMA - Pacific Western Bank Exp $0.00 $240,700.00 $240,700.00 ($240,700.00) $0.00 ($240,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.563 PMA - Wells Fargo Bank CD 7/20 $0.00 $249,246.55 $249,246.55 ($249,246.55) $0.00 ($249,246.55) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.594 PMA - Broadway Federal Bank, F $0.00 $246,400.00 $246,400.00 ($246,400.00) $0.00 ($246,400.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.595 PMA - Prospect Bank / Edgar Co $0.00 $246,400.00 $246,400.00 ($246,400.00) $0.00 ($246,400.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.596 PMA - CFG Community Bank Exp 1 $0.00 $107,200.00 $107,200.00 ($107,200.00) $0.00 ($107,200.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.597 PMA - Affilated Bank Exp 9/18 $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.598 PMA - Drake Bank Exp 9/18 $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.599 PMA - Crestmark Bank Exp 9/18 $0.00 $106,700.00 $106,700.00 ($106,700.00) $0.00 ($106,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.618 PMA - Western Alliance Bank/To $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.619 PMA - Bank of East Asia NY Exp $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.620 PMA - Community State Bank - O $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.621 PMA - CFG Community Bank Exp 1 $0.00 $139,000.00 $139,000.00 ($139,000.00) $0.00 ($139,000.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.622 PMA - TBK Bank, SSB/The Natl $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.623 PMA - First Capital Bank 10/18 $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.624 PMA - Valley National Bank Exp $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.625 PMA - Merrick Bank Certificate $0.00 $249,197.78 $249,197.78 ($249,197.78) $0.00 ($249,197.78) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.626 PMA - Freeport State Bank Exp $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.627 PMA - Safra Nat'l Bank Exp 11/ $0.00 $246,242.07 $246,242.07 ($246,242.07) $0.00 ($246,242.07) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.628 PMA - Wex Bank/Wright Express $0.00 $246,242.07 $246,242.07 ($246,242.07) $0.00 ($246,242.07) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.629 PMA - StateBankofindia NY Exp $0.00 $245,241.02 $245,241.02 ($245,241.02) $0.00 ($245,241.02) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.630 PMA - DMB Community Bank CD Ex $0.00 $249,185.76 $249,185.76 ($249,185.76) $0.00 ($249,185.76) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.631 PMA - Quontic Bank, FSB NY Exp $0.00 $245,800.00 $245,800.00 ($245,800.00) $0.00 ($245,800.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.632 PMA - Compass Bank CD Exp 12/2 $0.00 $245,240.37 $245,240.37 ($245,240.37) $0.00 ($245,240.37) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.633 PMA - Landmark Community Bank $0.00 $94,700.00 $94,700.00 ($94,700.00) $0.00 ($94,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.634 PMA - T Bank, NA TX Exp 12/27/ $0.00 $245,900.00 $245,900.00 ($245,900.00) $0.00 ($245,900.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.635 PMA - Great Midwest Bank WI Ex $0.00 $245,900.00 $245,900.00 ($245,900.00) $0.00 ($245,900.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.636 PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank USA C $0.00 $245,241.02 $245,241.02 ($245,241.02) $0.00 ($245,241.02) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.637 PMA - Morgan Stanley Private B $0.00 $245,216.90 $245,216.90 ($245,216.90) $0.00 ($245,216.90) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.638 PMA - Morgan Stanley Bank,NA C $0.00 $245,240.90 $245,240.90 ($245,240.90) $0.00 ($245,240.90) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.639 PMA - City Nat'l Bank Of Flori $0.00 $151,100.51 $151,100.51 ($151,100.51) $0.00 ($151,100.51) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.640 PMA - First Commons Bank NA Ex $0.00 $246,200.00 $246,200.00 ($246,200.00) $0.00 ($246,200.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.641 PMA - Freddie Mac Exp 4/15/19 $0.00 $996,776.03 $996,776.03 ($996,776.03) $0.00 ($996,776.03) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.642 PMA - ISDLAF+ Term Series Exp $0.00 $250,000.00 $250,000.00 ($250,000.00) $0.00 ($250,000.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.643 PMA - U.S. Treasury Note Exp 6 $0.00 $985,390.63 $985,390.63 ($985,390.63) $0.00 ($985,390.63) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.644 PMA - Libertyville B&TC Exp 4/ $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.645 PMA - Village Bank & Trust Exp $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.646 PMA - Town Bank Wintrust Exp 4 $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.647 PMA - Old Plank Trail Communit $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.501 PMA - Liquid General Fund $0.00 $414,960.90 $414,960.90 ($414,960.90) $0.00 ($414,960.90) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.502 PMA - Max General Fund $0.00 $100,572.32 $100,572.32 ($100,572.32) $0.00 ($100,572.32) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.528 PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/ $0.00 $69,023.50 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.529 PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry $0.00 $90,202.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%
Printed: 08/17/2018 4:24:04 PM Report:  rptGLGenRpt 2018.2.15 Page: 1



Kenilworth School District 38

Investment Balances
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019

|:| Subtotal by Collapse Mask
[ Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

From Date:

6/1/2018

To Date:

6/30/2018
|:| Include pre encumbrance |:| Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

Account Number Description GL Budget  Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance  Budget Balance % Bud
70.0000.0103.000.00.530 PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go $0.00 $136,971.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.531 PMA - West Des Moines la Ult G $0.00 $104,070.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.532 PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt C $0.00 $78,810.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.533 PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go $0.00 $100,140.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.534 PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/2 $0.00 $119,311.50 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.535 PMA - New York City Transition $0.00 $147,826.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.536 PMA - Evanston, Il Ult Go 12/2 $0.00 $74,497.50 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.537 PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd U $0.00 $49,815.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.538 PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/ $0.00 $20,752.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%
Grand Total: $0.00  $18971,620.22  ($18/974,62022  ($18,971,620.22) $0.00  ($18,971,620.22) 0.00%
End of Report
Printed: 08/17/2018 4:24:04 PM Report:  rptGLGenRpt 2018.2.15 Page: 2


cerokwu
Highlight


Kenilworth School District 38

Monthly Financials
June 30,2018




Fund Balance as of July 1, 2017

Kenilworth School District No. 38

Monthly Financials - June 2018

19,628,441.44

2016-2017 2016-2017 % 2017-2018 Budget 2017-2018 %
Revenues by Fund Budget Actuals Received Budget Balance YTD Received
Education 10,665,530.03 10,593,677.43 99.33% 10,502,834.95 -218,161.95  10,720,996.90 102.08%
Operations & Maintenance 1,592,428.27 1,539,930.19 96.70% 1,548,734.44 18,711.15 1,530,023.29 98.79%
Debt Service 535,537.80 844,776.48 157.74% 850,206.95 -135,103.00 985,309.95 115.89%
Transportation 21,265.79 39,385.13 185.20% 39,417.19 -10,621.65 50,038.84 126.95%
IMRF & Social Security 297,927.97 260,977.04  87.60% 261,916.32 51,091.24 210,825.08 80.49%
Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Working Cash -95,680.52 40,601.57 -42.43% 40,601.57 -3,488,092.28 3,528,693.85 8691.03%
Tort Fund 181,656.04 111,282.40 61.26% 110,221.38 62,304.43 47,916.95 43.47%
Fire Prevention & Life Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Total Revenue - All Funds 13,198,665.37 13,430,630.24 101.76% 13,353,932.80 -3,719,872.06 17,073,804.86

2016-2017 2016-2017 % 2017-2018 Budget 2017-2018 %
Expenditures by Fund Budget Actuals Received Budget Balance YTD Received
Education 10,023,102.00 10,129,328.00 101.06% 10,664,763.79 -293,326.02  10,958,089.81 102.75%
Operations & Maintenance 893,152.00 739,459.23  82.79% 761,701.97 -304,759.63 1,066,461.60 140.01%
Debt Service 1,065,674.00 1,028,958.41 96.55% 1,059,827.16 124,336.44 935,490.72 88.27%
Transportation 64,218.00 56,378.53 87.79% 58,069.89 -15,592.45 73,662.34 126.85%
IMRF & Social Security 142,138.00 196,928.41 138.55% 204,805.55 -12,400.72 217,206.27 106.05%
Capital Projects 3,300,000.00 0.00 0.00% 3,300,000.00  3,300,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Working Cash 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Tort Fund 76,250.00 70,693.26 0.00% 72,814.06 15,487.93 57,326.13 78.73%
Fire Prevention & Life Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Total Expenditures - All Funds 15,564,534.00 12,221,745.84 78.52% 16,121,982.42 2,813,745.55  13,308,236.87

Investment Balance
Checking Account Balance
Outstanding Checks
Outstanding Disbursements
Outstanding Liabilities
Deposits In-Transit

17,093,363.32
3,079,530.14
311,575.02
211,336.10
0.00
-21,540.90

18,971,620.22
5,460,731.09
184,792.14
265,654.80
0.00

0.00

8/17/18



Kenilworth School District No. 38

Monthly Financials - June 2018

Fund Balance as of June 30, 2017 19,628,441.44 23,981,904.37
2017-2018
2016-2017 2016-2017 % Proposed Budget 2017-2018 %
Budget Actuals Received Budget Balance YTD Received
Revenues by Source
Tax Levy 12,433,665.37 12,491,764.40 100.47% 12,573,048.48 27,122.69  12,545,925.79 99.78%
Other Local Revenue 345,000.00 550,659.20 159.61% 456,021.10 -80,506.95 536,528.05 117.65%
State Revenue 284,000.00 251,817.64 88.67% 188,863.23 -203,708.86 392,572.09 207.86%
Federal Revenue 136,000.00 136,389.00 100.29% 136,000.00 35,050.27 100,949.73 74.23%
Other Financial Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 -3,497,829.20 3,497,829.20 0.00%
Total revenues - All Funds 13,198,665.37 13,430,630.24 101.76% 13,353,932.81 -3,719,872.05 17,073,804.86
2016-2017 2017-2018
2016-2017 Unaudited % Proposed Budget 2017-2018 %
Budget Actuals Received Budget Balance YTD Received
Expenditures by Object
Salaries 7,255,883.59 7,253,688.38 99.97% 7,612,298.49 153,095.63 7,459,202.86 97.99%
Benefits 1,454,517.06 1,498,101.40 103.00% 1,639,104.81 -103,474.08 1,742,578.89 106.31%
Purchased Services 1,073,559.37 1,207,994.49 112.52% 1,244,142.69 -326,978.42 1,571,121.11 126.28%
Supplies 785,907.12 724,467.28 92.18% 746,246.58 -48,621.74 794,868.32  106.52%
Capital Outlay 3,522,556.59 239,427.58 6.80% 3,543,181.14 3,138,096.95 405,084.19 11.43%
Other Expenses 1,472,110.28 1,298,066.71 88.18% 1,337,008.71 1,627.21 1,335,381.50 99.88%
Total Expenditures - All Funds 15,564,534.00 12,221,745.84 78.52% 16,121,982.42  2,813,745.55 13,308,236.87
-3,342,788.16
Excess or (Deficit) Revenues -2,365,868.63 1,208,884.40 -2,768,049.61 3,765,567.99
Over Expenditures
Fund Balance As of July 1st 16,273,098.05 19,628,441.44

Budgeted Fund Balance - June 30th

19,628,441.44

16,860,391.83

8/17/18



Monthly Balance Sheet
June 1, 2018 - June 30,2018

Beg Fund Balance Ending Cash Balance

(June 1, 2018) Receipts Disbursements (June 30, 2018)

Education 10,326,221.25 2,973,912.74 4,402,358.75 8,897,775.24
Operations & Maintenance 5,878,035.47 3,098.80 45,271.11 5,835,863.16
Debt Service 1,059,381.26 0.00 0.00 1,059,381.26
Transportation 130,376.49 0.00 9,341.78 121,034.71
IMRF & Social Security 517,339.60 34,853.28 37,500.11 514,692.77
Capital Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Working Cash 6,493,417.54 14,643.88 5,369.50 6,502,691.92
Tort Fund 636,306.69 0.00 0.00 636,306.69
Life Safety 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25,041,078.30 3,026,508.70  4,499,841.25 23,567,745.75

Outstanding Checks 184,792.14
Outstanding Disbursements 679,813.42
Outstanding Liabiilites 0.00
Deposits In Transit 0.00
Total Cash and Investments 24,432,351.31

Ending Fund Balance

(June 30, 2018)

Investments 18,971,620.22
Checking Account 5,461,145.09
Total Cash and Investments 24,432,765.31

8/17/18



Kenilworth School District 38

Balance Sheet
Fiscal Year: 2017-2018

From Date:  6/1/2018 To Date: 8/31/2018
|:| Subtotal by Collapse Mask |:| Include pre encumbrance |:| Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range
[ Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Account Number Description GL Budget  Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance  Budget Balance % Bud
10.0000.0100.000.00.000 Cash and Investments Summary $0.00  ($1,413,262.92) $8,925,112.98 ($8,925,112.98) $0.00 ($8,925,112.98) 0.00%
10.0000.0200.000.00.000 Due From Activity Acct/Fixed A $0.00 $0.00 $1,075.12 ($1,075.12) $0.00 ($1,075.12) 0.00%
10.0000.0400.000.00.000 Current Liabilities Summary $0.00 ($906,094.02) ($753,564.19) $753,564.19 $0.00 $753,564.19 0.00%
10.0000.0700.000.00.000 000 $0.00 $0.00 ($8,409,716.82) $8,409,716.82 $0.00 $8,409,716.82 0.00%
FUND: EDUCATIONAL FUND -10 $0.00  ($2,319,356.94) ($237,092.91) $237,092.91 $0.00 $237,092.91 0.00%
20.0000.0100.000.00.000 Cash and Investments Summary $0.00 ($42,172.31) $5,835,863.16 ($5,835,863.16) $0.00 ($5,835,863.16) 0.00%
20.0000.0400.000.00.000 Current Liabilities Summary $0.00 ($44,056.27) ($46,382.76) $46,382.76 $0.00 $46,382.76 0.00%
20.0000.0700.000.00.000 000 $0.00 $0.00 ($5,325,918.71) $5,325,918.71 $0.00 $5,325,918.71 0.00%
FUND: OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND -20 $0.00 ($86,228.58) $463,561.69 ($463,561.69) $0.00 ($463,561.69) 0.00%
30.0000.0100.000.00.000 Cash and Investments Summary $0.00 $0.00 $1,059,381.26 ($1,059,381.26) $0.00 ($1,059,381.26) 0.00%
30.0000.0400.000.00.000 Current Liabilities Summary $0.00 ($1,250.00) ($1,250.00) $1,250.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 0.00%
30.0000.0700.000.00.000 000 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,008,312.03) $1,008,312.03 $0.00 $1,008,312.03 0.00%
FUND: DEBT SERVICE FUND - 30 $0.00 ($1,250.00) $49,819.23 ($49,819.23) $0.00 ($49,819.23) 0.00%
40.0000.0100.000.00.000 Cash and Investments Summary $0.00 ($9,341.78) $122,834.17 ($122,834.17) $0.00 ($122,834.17) 0.00%
40.0000.0400.000.00.000 Current Liabilities Summary $0.00 ($2,526.78) ($2,527.02) $2,527.02 $0.00 $2,527.02 0.00%
40.0000.0700.000.00.000 000 $0.00 $0.00 ($143,930.65) $143,930.65 $0.00 $143,930.65 0.00%
FUND: TRANSPORTATION FUND - 40 $0.00 ($11,868.56) ($23,623.50) $23,623.50 $0.00 $23,623.50 0.00%
50.0000.0100.000.00.000 Cash and Investments Summary $0.00 ($17,978.75) $499,360.85 ($499,360.85) $0.00 ($499,360.85) 0.00%
50.0000.0400.000.00.000 Current Liabilities Summary $0.00 ($21,522.89) ($17,916.46) $17,916.46 $0.00 $17,916.46 0.00%
50.0000.0700.000.00.000 000 $0.00 $0.00 ($487,825.58) $487,825.58 $0.00 $487,825.58 0.00%
FUND: MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT/SS FUND - 50 $0.00 ($39,501.64) ($6,381.19) $6,381.19 $0.00 $6,381.19 0.00%
70.0000.0100.000.00.000 Cash and Investments Summary $0.00 $9,274.38 $6,502,691.92 ($6,502,691.92) $0.00 ($6,502,691.92) 0.00%
70.0000.0700.000.00.000 000 $0.00 $0.00 ($3,040,148.07) $3,040,148.07 $0.00 $3,040,148.07 0.00%
70.0000.8900.000.00.000 000 $0.00 $0.00 $66,150.00 ($66,150.00) $0.00 ($66,150.00) 0.00%
FUND: WORKING CASH -70 $0.00 $9,274.38 $3,528,693.85 ($3,528,693.85) $0.00 ($3,528,693.85) 0.00%
80.0000.0100.000.00.000 Cash and Investments Summary $0.00 $0.00 $636,306.69 ($636,306.69) $0.00 ($636,306.69) 0.00%
80.0000.0400.000.00.000 Current Liabilities Summary $0.00 ($56,912.70) ($56,912.70) $56,912.70 $0.00 $56,912.70 0.00%
80.0000.0700.000.00.000 000 $0.00 $0.00 ($588,803.17) $588,803.17 $0.00 $588,803.17 0.00%
FUND: TORT FUND - 80 $0.00 ($56,912.70) ($9,409.18) $9,409.18 $0.00 $9,409.18 0.00%
Grand Total: $0.00  ($2,505,844.04) @EMeSIEETE9  ($3.765,567.99) $0.00  ($3765567.99) 0.00%
End of Report
Printed: 08/10/2018 7:30:15 AM Report:  rptGLGenRpt 2018.2.15 Page: 1


cerokwu
Highlight

cerokwu
Highlight


Kenilworth School District 38

Cash and Investments

Fiscal Year: 2018-2019 |:| Subtotal by Collapse Mask

[ Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

From Date:

6/1/2018

To Date:

6/30/2018
|:| Include pre encumbrance |:| Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

Account Number Description GL Budget  Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance  Budget Balance % Bud
10.0000.0101.000.00.005 Cash - New Main Account $0.00  ($8,596,064.47) ($8,596,064.47) $8,596,064.47 $0.00 $8,596,064.47 0.00%
20.0000.0101.000.00.005 Cash - New Main Account $0.00 $6,181,305.74 $6,181,305.74 ($6,181,305.74) $0.00 ($6,181,305.74) 0.00%
30.0000.0101.000.00.005 Cash - New Main Account $0.00 $1,059,381.26 $1,059,381.26 ($1,059,381.26) $0.00 ($1,059,381.26) 0.00%
40.0000.0101.000.00.005 Cash - New Main Account $0.00 $121,322.71 $121,322.71 ($121,322.71) $0.00 ($121,322.71) 0.00%
50.0000.0101.000.00.005 Cash - New Main Account $0.00 $1,006,592.08 $1,006,592.08 ($1,006,592.08) $0.00 ($1,006,592.08) 0.00%
70.0000.0101.000.00.005 Cash - New Main Account $0.00 $4,995,740.20 $4,995,740.20 ($4,995,740.20) $0.00 ($4,995,740.20) 0.00%
80.0000.0101.000.00.005 Cash - New Main Account $0.00 $636,306.69 $636,306.69 ($636,306.69) $0.00 ($636,306.69) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: 005 - 005 $0.00 $5,404,584.21 $5,404,584.21 ($5,404,584.21) $0.00 ($5,404,584.21) 0.00%
10.0000.0101.000.00.006 Cash - New Revolving Account $0.00 $4,107.93 $4,107.93 ($4,107.93) $0.00 ($4,107.93) 0.00%
20.0000.0101.000.00.006 Cash - New Revolving Account $0.00 ($552.99) ($552.99) $552.99 $0.00 $552.99 0.00%
40.0000.0101.000.00.006 000 $0.00 ($288.00) ($288.00) $288.00 $0.00 $288.00 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: 006 - 006 $0.00 $3,266.94 $3,266.94 ($3,266.94) $0.00 ($3,266.94) 0.00%
FUNCTION: CASH - 0101 $0.00 $5,407,851.15 $5,407,851.15 ($5,407,851.15) $0.00 ($5,407,851.15) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.501 PMA - Liquid General Fund $0.00 $2,169,317.72 $2,169,317.72 ($2,169,317.72) $0.00 ($2,169,317.72) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.501 PMA - Liquid General Fund $0.00 $414,960.90 $414,960.90 ($414,960.90) $0.00 ($414,960.90) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Liquid General Fund - 501 $0.00 $2,584,278.62 $2,584,278.62 ($2,584,278.62) $0.00 ($2,584,278.62) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.502 PMA - Max General Fund $0.00 $3,608,289.17 $3,608,289.17 ($3,608,289.17) $0.00 ($3,608,289.17) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.502 PMA - Max General Fund $0.00 $100,572.32 $100,572.32 ($100,572.32) $0.00 ($100,572.32) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Max General Fund - 502 $0.00 $3,708,861.49 $3,708,861.49 ($3,708,861.49) $0.00 ($3,708,861.49) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.503 PMA - Onewest Bank 12/2014 $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Onewest Bank 12/2014 - 503 $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.512 PMA - Sonabank 12/2014 $0.00 $245,000.00 $245,000.00 ($245,000.00) $0.00 ($245,000.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Sonabank 12/2014 - 512 $0.00 $245,000.00 $245,000.00 ($245,000.00) $0.00 ($245,000.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.528 PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/ $0.00 $69,023.50 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Ltd Go 12/2015 - 528 $0.00 $69,023.50 $69,023.50 ($69,023.50) $0.00 ($69,023.50) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.529 PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry $0.00 $90,202.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Cook Kane Lake & McHenry Cnty 12/2015 $0.00 $90,202.00 $90,202.00 ($90,202.00) $0.00 ($90,202.00) 0.00%
-529
70.0000.0103.000.00.530 PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go $0.00 $136,971.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Outgamie Cnty Wi Ult Go 12/2015 - 530 $0.00 $136,971.00 $136,971.00 ($136,971.00) $0.00 ($136,971.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.531 PMA - West Des Moines la Ult G $0.00 $104,070.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - West Des Moines la Ult Go 12/2015 - 531 $0.00 $104,070.00 $104,070.00 ($104,070.00) $0.00 ($104,070.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.532 PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt C $0.00 $78,810.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Schertz/Seguin Tx Govt Contract Revs $0.00 $78,810.00 $78,810.00 ($78,810.00) $0.00 ($78,810.00) 0.00%
12/2015 - 532

70.0000.0103.000.00.533 PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go $0.00 $100,140.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Hamilton Cnty In Ltd Go 12/2015 - 533 $0.00 $100,140.00 $100,140.00 ($100,140.00) $0.00 ($100,140.00) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.534 PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/2 $0.00 $119,311.50 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - King City Wa Ult Go 12/2015 - 534 $0.00 $119,311.50 $119,311.50 ($119,311.50) $0.00 ($119,311.50) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.535 PMA - New York City Transition $0.00 $147,826.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%

Printed: 08/17/2018 3:17:46 PM Report:  rptGLGenRpt 2018.2.15 Page: 1



Kenilworth School District 38

Cash and Investments
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019
[ Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

From Date:

6/1/2018

To Date:

6/30/2018
|:| Subtotal by Collapse Mask |:| Include pre encumbrance |:| Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

Account Number Description GL Budget  Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance  Budget Balance % Bud
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - New York City Transitional Revs 12/2015 - $0.00 $147,826.00 $147,826.00 ($147,826.00) $0.00 ($147,826.00) 0.00%

535
70.0000.0103.000.00.536 PMA - Evanston, Il Uit Go 12/2 $0.00 $74,497.50 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Evanston, Il Ult Go 12/2015 - 536 $0.00 $74,497.50 $74,497.50 ($74,497.50) $0.00 ($74,497.50) 0.00%
70.0000.0103.000.00.537 PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd U $0.00 $49,815.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - South Huntington Ny Sd Ult Go 12/2015 - $0.00 $49,815.00 $49,815.00 ($49,815.00) $0.00 ($49,815.00) 0.00%

537
70.0000.0103.000.00.538 PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/ $0.00 $20,752.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Clark Cnty Nv Go Ltd 12/2015 - 538 $0.00 $20,752.00 $20,752.00 ($20,752.00) $0.00 ($20,752.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.543 PMA - Bank of the West Exp 7/2 $0.00 $245,200.00 $245,200.00 ($245,200.00) $0.00 ($245,200.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Bank of the West Exp 7/2018 - 543 $0.00 $245,200.00 $245,200.00 ($245,200.00) $0.00 ($245,200.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.547 PMA - Discover Bank Certificat $0.00 $248,000.00 $248,000.00 ($248,000.00) $0.00 ($248,000.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Discover Bank Certificate of Dep Exp $0.00 $248,000.00 $248,000.00 ($248,000.00) $0.00 ($248,000.00) 0.00%

7/2018 - 547
10.0000.0103.000.00.551 PMA - Farmers & Merchants Unio $0.00 $245,300.00 $245,300.00 ($245,300.00) $0.00 ($245,300.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Farmers & Merchants Union Bank Exp $0.00 $245,300.00 $245,300.00 ($245,300.00) $0.00 ($245,300.00) 0.00%

7/2018 - 551
10.0000.0103.000.00.552 PMA - Fieldpoint Private Bank $0.00 $245,700.00 $245,700.00 ($245,700.00) $0.00 ($245,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Fieldpoint Private Bank & Trust 7/2018 - $0.00 $245,700.00 $245,700.00 ($245,700.00) $0.00 ($245,700.00) 0.00%

552
10.0000.0103.000.00.558 PMA - Pacific Western Bank Exp $0.00 $240,700.00 $240,700.00 ($240,700.00) $0.00 ($240,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Pacific Western Bank Exp 7/2018 - 558 $0.00 $240,700.00 $240,700.00 ($240,700.00) $0.00 ($240,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.563 PMA - Wells Fargo Bank CD 7/20 $0.00 $249,246.55 $249,246.55 ($249,246.55) $0.00 ($249,246.55) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Firstrust Savings Bank 1/22/18 - 563 $0.00 $249,246.55 $249,246.55 ($249,246.55) $0.00 ($249,246.55) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.594 PMA - Broadway Federal Bank, F $0.00 $246,400.00 $246,400.00 ($246,400.00) $0.00 ($246,400.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Broadway Federal Bank, F.S.B. Exp 10/18 - $0.00 $246,400.00 $246,400.00 ($246,400.00) $0.00 ($246,400.00) 0.00%

594
10.0000.0103.000.00.595 PMA - Prospect Bank / Edgar Co $0.00 $246,400.00 $246,400.00 ($246,400.00) $0.00 ($246,400.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Prospect Bank / Edgar County B&TC Exp $0.00 $246,400.00 $246,400.00 ($246,400.00) $0.00 ($246,400.00) 0.00%

10/18 - 595
10.0000.0103.000.00.596 PMA - CFG Community Bank Exp 1 $0.00 $107,200.00 $107,200.00 ($107,200.00) $0.00 ($107,200.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - CFG Community Bank Exp 10/18 - 596 $0.00 $107,200.00 $107,200.00 ($107,200.00) $0.00 ($107,200.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.597 PMA - Affilated Bank Exp 9/18 $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Affilated Bank Exp 9/18 - 597 $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.598 PMA - Drake Bank Exp 9/18 $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Drake Bank Exp 9/18 - 598 $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.599 PMA - Crestmark Bank Exp 9/18 $0.00 $106,700.00 $106,700.00 ($106,700.00) $0.00 ($106,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Crestmark Bank Exp 9/18 - 599 $0.00 $106,700.00 $106,700.00 ($106,700.00) $0.00 ($106,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.618 PMA - Western Alliance Bank/To $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Western Alliance Bank/TorreyPines Exp $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%

10/18 - 618
10.0000.0103.000.00.619 PMA - Bank of East Asia NY Exp $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Bank of East Asia NY Exp 10/18 - 619 $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%

Printed: 08/17/2018 3:17:46 PM Report:  rptGLGenRpt 2018.2.15 Page: 2



Kenilworth School District 38

Cash and Investments
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019

From Date:

6/1/2018

To Date:

6/30/2018

|:| Subtotal by Collapse Mask |:| Include pre encumbrance |:| Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

[ Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Account Number Description GL Budget  Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance  Budget Balance % Bud
10.0000.0103.000.00.620 PMA - Community State Bank - O $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Community State Bank - OK Exp 10/18 - $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%

620
10.0000.0103.000.00.621 PMA - CFG Community Bank Exp 1 $0.00 $139,000.00 $139,000.00 ($139,000.00) $0.00 ($139,000.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - CFG Community Bank Exp 10/18 - 621 $0.00 $139,000.00 $139,000.00 ($139,000.00) $0.00 ($139,000.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.622 PMA - TBK Bank, SSB/The Natl $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - TBK Bank, SSB/The Nat'l Bank 10/18 - 622 $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.623 PMA - First Capital Bank 10/18 $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - First Capital Bank 10/18 - 623 $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.624 PMA - Valley National Bank Exp $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Valley National Bank Exp 10/18 - 624 $0.00 $246,700.00 $246,700.00 ($246,700.00) $0.00 ($246,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.625 PMA - Merrick Bank Certificate $0.00 $249,197.78 $249,197.78 ($249,197.78) $0.00 ($249,197.78) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Merrick Bank Certificate of Deposit 10/18 - $0.00 $249,197.78 $249,197.78 ($249,197.78) $0.00 ($249,197.78) 0.00%

625
10.0000.0103.000.00.626 PMA - Freeport State Bank Exp $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Freeport State Bank Exp 10/18 - 626 $0.00 $246,600.00 $246,600.00 ($246,600.00) $0.00 ($246,600.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.627 PMA - Safra Nat'l Bank Exp 11/ $0.00 $246,242.07 $246,242.07 ($246,242.07) $0.00 ($246,242.07) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Safra Natl Bank Exp 11/18 - 627 $0.00 $246,242.07 $246,242.07 ($246,242.07) $0.00 ($246,242.07) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.628 PMA - Wex Bank/Wright Express $0.00 $246,242.07 $246,242.07 ($246,242.07) $0.00 ($246,242.07) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Wex Bank/Wright Express Exp 11/18 - 628 $0.00 $246,242.07 $246,242.07 ($246,242.07) $0.00 ($246,242.07) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.629 PMA - StateBankofindia NY Exp $0.00 $245,241.02 $245,241.02 ($245,241.02) $0.00 ($245,241.02) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA -StateBankofindia NY Exp 12/28/18 - 629 $0.00 $245,241.02 $245,241.02 ($245,241.02) $0.00 ($245,241.02) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.630 PMA - DMB Community Bank CD Ex $0.00 $249,185.76 $249,185.76 ($249,185.76) $0.00 ($249,185.76) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - DMB Community Bank CD Exp 9/28/18 - $0.00 $249,185.76 $249,185.76 ($249,185.76) $0.00 ($249,185.76) 0.00%

630
10.0000.0103.000.00.631 PMA - Quontic Bank, FSB NY Exp $0.00 $245,800.00 $245,800.00 ($245,800.00) $0.00 ($245,800.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Quontic Bank, FSB NY Exp 12/27/18 - 631 $0.00 $245,800.00 $245,800.00 ($245,800.00) $0.00 ($245,800.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.632 PMA - Compass Bank CD Exp 12/2 $0.00 $245,240.37 $245,240.37 ($245,240.37) $0.00 ($245,240.37) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Compass Bank CD Exp 12/28/18 - 632 $0.00 $245,240.37 $245,240.37 ($245,240.37) $0.00 ($245,240.37) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.633 PMA - Landmark Community Bank $0.00 $94,700.00 $94,700.00 ($94,700.00) $0.00 ($94,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Landmark Community Bank Exp 12/27/18 - $0.00 $94,700.00 $94,700.00 ($94,700.00) $0.00 ($94,700.00) 0.00%

633
10.0000.0103.000.00.634 PMA - T Bank, NA TX Exp 12/27/ $0.00 $245,900.00 $245,900.00 ($245,900.00) $0.00 ($245,900.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - T Bank, NA TX Exp 12/27/18 - 634 $0.00 $245,900.00 $245,900.00 ($245,900.00) $0.00 ($245,900.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.635 PMA - Great Midwest Bank WI Ex $0.00 $245,900.00 $245,900.00 ($245,900.00) $0.00 ($245,900.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Great Midwest Bank WI Exp 12/27/18 - 635 $0.00 $245,900.00 $245,900.00 ($245,900.00) $0.00 ($245,900.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.636 PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank USA C $0.00 $245,241.02 $245,241.02 ($245,241.02) $0.00 ($245,241.02) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Goldman Sachs Bank USA CD EXP 1/3/19 $0.00 $245,241.02 $245,241.02 ($245,241.02) $0.00 ($245,241.02) 0.00%

- 636

Printed: 08/17/2018 3:17:46 PM Report:  rptGLGenRpt 2018.2.15 Page: 3



Kenilworth School District 38

Cash and Investments
Fiscal Year: 2018-2019
[ Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

From Date:

6/1/2018

To Date:

6/30/2018
|:| Subtotal by Collapse Mask |:| Include pre encumbrance |:| Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

Account Number Description GL Budget  Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance  Budget Balance % Bud
10.0000.0103.000.00.637 PMA - Morgan Stanley Private B $0.00 $245,216.90 $245,216.90 ($245,216.90) $0.00 ($245,216.90) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Morgan Stanley Private Bank, NA Exp $0.00 $245,216.90 $245,216.90 ($245,216.90) $0.00 ($245,216.90) 0.00%

1/4/19 - 637
10.0000.0103.000.00.638 PMA - Morgan Stanley Bank,NA C $0.00 $245,240.90 $245,240.90 ($245,240.90) $0.00 ($245,240.90) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Morgan Stanley Bank,NA CD 1/4/19 - 638 $0.00 $245,240.90 $245,240.90 ($245,240.90) $0.00 ($245,240.90) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.639 PMA - City Nat'l Bank Of Flori $0.00 $151,100.51 $151,100.51 ($151,100.51) $0.00 ($151,100.51) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - City Nat'l Bank Of Florida CD Exp 1/5/18 - $0.00 $151,100.51 $151,100.51 ($151,100.51) $0.00 ($151,100.51) 0.00%

639
10.0000.0103.000.00.640 PMA - First Commons Bank NA Ex $0.00 $246,200.00 $246,200.00 ($246,200.00) $0.00 ($246,200.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - First Commons Bank NA Exp 12/11/18 - $0.00 $246,200.00 $246,200.00 ($246,200.00) $0.00 ($246,200.00) 0.00%

640
10.0000.0103.000.00.641 PMA - Freddie Mac Exp 4/15/19 $0.00 $996,776.03 $996,776.03 ($996,776.03) $0.00 ($996,776.03) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Freddie Mac Exp 4/15/19 - 641 $0.00 $996,776.03 $996,776.03 ($996,776.03) $0.00 ($996,776.03) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.642 PMA - ISDLAF+ Term Series Exp $0.00 $250,000.00 $250,000.00 ($250,000.00) $0.00 ($250,000.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - ISDLAF+ Term Series Exp 12/5/18 - 642 $0.00 $250,000.00 $250,000.00 ($250,000.00) $0.00 ($250,000.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.643 PMA - U.S. Treasury Note Exp 6 $0.00 $985,390.63 $985,390.63 ($985,390.63) $0.00 ($985,390.63) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - U.S. Treasury Note Exp 6/15/19 - 643 $0.00 $985,390.63 $985,390.63 ($985,390.63) $0.00 ($985,390.63) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.644 PMA - Libertyville B&TC Exp 4/ $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Libertyville B&TC Exp 4/19/19 - 644 $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.645 PMA - Village Bank & Trust Exp $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Village Bank & Trust Exp 4/19/19 - 645 $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.646 PMA - Town Bank Wintrust Exp 4 $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Town Bank Wintrust Exp 4/19/19 - 646 $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
10.0000.0103.000.00.647 PMA - Old Plank Trail Communit $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: PMA - Old Plank Trail Community Bank Exp $0.00 $244,700.00 $244,700.00 ($244,700.00) $0.00 ($244,700.00) 0.00%

4/19/19 - 647
FUNCTION: UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENTS - 0103 $0.00  $18,971,620.22 $18,971,620.22  ($18,971,620.22) $0.00  ($18,971,620.22) 0.00%
10.0000.0109.000.00.001 CASH - NEW PAYROLL $0.00 $40,395.20 $40,395.20 ($40,395.20) $0.00 ($40,395.20) 0.00%
20.0000.0109.000.00.001 CASH - NEW PAYROLL $0.00 ($344,889.59) ($344,889.59) $344,889.59 $0.00 $344,889.59 0.00%
50.0000.0109.000.00.001 CASH - NEW PAYROLL $0.00 ($507,231.23) ($507,231.23) $507,231.23 $0.00 $507,231.23 0.00%
SUB ACCOUNT: 001 - 001 $0.00 ($811,725.62) ($811,725.62) $811,725.62 $0.00 $811,725.62 0.00%
FUNCTION: CASH - PAYROLL - 0109 $0.00 ($811,725.62) ($811,725.62) $811,725.62 $0.00 $811,725.62 0.00%
Grand Total: $0.00  $23,567,745.75 $23567,745:75  ($23,567,745.75) $0.00  ($23,567,745.75) 0.00%

End of Report
Printed: 08/17/2018 3:17:46 PM Report:  rptGLGenRpt 2018.2.15 Page: 4


cerokwu
Highlight


) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

MINUTES FOR THE PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 16™ DAY OF MAY 2018

The meeting was called to order by Committee Member Mrs. Suzanne Nelson at 4:03 p.m. Upon roll call,
the following board members answered as being present: Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mrs. Melissa Ross, Mr.
Scott Wallace, Mrs. Donna Keller, Mr. John Gottschall and Mrs. Danielle Boros.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

Mrs. Nelson called for a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters and potential or probable litigation.

Mr. Scott Wallace made a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Melissa Ross.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

The Board entered closed session at 4:03 p.m.

The Board returned to open session at 7:12 p.m.

Upon roll call, the following board members answered as being present: Mr. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Suzanne
Nelson, Mrs. Melissa Ross, Mrs. Danielle Boros, Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Donna Keller and Mr. John
Gottschall.

ADJOURNMENT

Mrs. Nelson entertained a motion to adjourn.

Mrs. Melissa Ross moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:12 p.m. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Donna
Keller

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

5/16/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

The motion carried with all yeses and one member absent.
The meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m.

Attest for Distribution:

Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Mindy Kelly, President

ATTEST:

Chike Erokwu, Secretary

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

5/16/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

MINUTES FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 24™ DAY OF MAY 2018

The meeting was called to order by President Mindy Kelly at 4:31 p.m. Upon roll call, the following
board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mr. Scott Wallace,
Mrs. Donna Keller and Mrs. Melissa Ross. Mr. John Gottschall and Mrs. Danielle Boros were absent.

Also in attendance were:
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters and potential or probable litigation.

Mrs. Donna Keller made a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employees matters and potential or probable litigation. The motion was seconded by Mr. Scott Wallace.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros

Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 5 to 0 with two members absent.

The Board entered closed session at 4:31 p.m.

The Board returned to open session at 5:50 p.m.

Upon roll call, the following board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Danielle
Boros, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Melissa Ross and Mrs. Donna Keller. Mr. John
Gottschall was absent.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO

Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

Mr. Besset Sabourin, Director of Student Services

Community: Mrs. Allison Drew and Mrs. Enza Fox (videographers), several members of the community.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

5/24/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 6



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mrs. Mindy Kelly welcomed members of the community to the meeting and thanked them for their
attendance.

Mrs. Kelly opened the floor for public comment.
Mrs. Beth Beeler noted she is disappointed in how the process related to Mrs. Wallace’s resignation was
handled by the Board and the Administration. Mrs. Beeler expressed her disappointment over the

resignation of Mrs. Wallace.

Mrs. Paget Bahr noted that she would like to understand what the District has planned to improve moral
and retain teachers. Mrs. Bahr thanked the board for their service.

Mrs. Julie Ruck noted that she is confused about the relationship between the board and the
superintendent. Mrs. Ruck inquired about the plan to replace the principal.

Mrs. Marjorie Bransfield noted that she feels let down by the situation. Mrs. Bransfield questioned the
role of Dr. LeRoy as the leader of the District.

Mr. Brian Beeler noted that the Board did not do a good job of sharing information with the community
on the situation related to Mrs. Wallace’s resignation.

OLD BUSINESS

Discussion of and Potential Action to Approve Resignation Agreement for Mrs. Kendra Wallace,
Principal — Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to approve the resignation agreement for Mrs. Kendra
Wallace.

Board members expressed themselves as follows:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

Four board members said ‘yes,” one board member said ‘no,” one board member was absent and one
board member said ‘abstain.’

Mrs. Kelly read the following statement into the record:

To the Faculty, Families, Friends and Community Members of The Joseph Sears School:

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

5/24/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 6



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

We called this meeting to take action on the resignation letter tendered by Mrs. Wallace. Thank you for
bearing with us during this lengthy process.

As you have seen in yesterday's email from Mrs. Wallace, she has accepted a new position in the area. On
behalf of the Board, we would like to thank Mrs. Wallace for her four years of service as Principal of The
Joseph Sears School and we wish her the very best in the new role. So many of you have come forward
and shared stories of the impact Mrs. Wallace has made on not only your children, but on our entire
school community. We very much appreciate all Mrs. Wallace has done for the children and families of
Kenilworth.

In the coming weeks, we will begin a comprehensive search process to find the best possible candidate to
fill the open principal vacancy. Given the timing of our search, and the full and robust search process we
hope to employ, we may not have our long-term principal in place before the start of the 2018-2019
school year. Should this be the case, and our search does not immediately produce an outstanding
candidate to fill the position, we will hire an interim principal and rely upon the experience of our
teachers and administrators to ensure Sears continues to operate at a high level. We will involve all of our
constituents in our search — parents, teachers and residents — in order to arrive at the best possible
outcome.

Organizational stability remains the highest priority for the Board of Education. Mrs. Wallace’s
resignation has laid bare long-standing cultural issues within our school community. Frequent
administrative turnover is counterproductive to our mission. Beginning this summer and continuing
throughout the 2018-2019 school year, we will work to identify the issues that have led to high
administrative turnover over the past decade. Please know we are very committed to understanding and
addressing these issues over the course of the coming months and where appropriate, we will engage high
quality external resources to assist us in this process.

We take very seriously our responsibility to act on your behalf and to keep you engaged along the way.
Throughout this process, we have struggled to find the right balance between privacy and full disclosure.
We have learned some hard lessons out of this and many of you have given us clear and direct feedback
on areas we can improve on. In July, we will be having a day-long board offsite meeting where we will
address these issues. We will share with you any changes that we may make at that time.

We believe it is appropriate to acknowledge to the community something simple, yet powerful. A great
majority of you expressed a strong desire that Mrs. Wallace continue on as our Principal. We are board
members elected through a democratic process to work on behalf of the people who elected us. Yet we
have an outcome counter to the desire expressed by many of our constituents. We completely understand
the sense of unfairness that some of you may feel. We apologize and very much feel the weight of our
obligation to the community. Reflecting on this, we plan to identify opportunities to dialogue with the
community. We will identify these opportunities to have a more robust dialogue on the path forward.
Further details will be forthcoming.

Finally, Sears remains an outstanding school thanks to the dedicated families, teachers and administrators
that make up our school community. Further, starting in July, our Administrative team will be greatly
strengthened by the addition of Dr. Lisa Leali and Ms. Zuica Donev in their respective roles as Chief
Education Officer and Director of Student Services. We also are assisted by our Superintendent, Dr.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

5/24/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 6



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Crystal LeRoy. While we undergo a period of transition in the short-term, we are confident that the future
of our school district is secure under the vision and leadership of our new Administrative team.

Thank you all for coming out tonight and thank you for your continued passion for Sears. We look
forward to working collaboratively as partners this year and into the future.

Discussion of and Potential Approval of Revised Village House Development Agreement Between
Kenilworth Park District and Kenilworth School District No. 38 — Mr. Wallace noted that the Park
District requested that the two entities make a change to the agreement which was approved last month.
The change would note that the two entities would not award a construction contract out to begin work on
the Village House unless and until the funding has been secured for the project. Mr. Wallace said this
language was implicitly in the agreement, however now it will be expressly stated.

Mr. Wallace noted that two community meetings are scheduled to discuss the plans for the Village House
project.

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved to approve the revised Village House Development Agreement between
Kenilworth School District No. 38 and Kenilworth Park District. The motion was seconded by Mr.
Wallace.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 5 to 0. One board member abstained and one board member was absent.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mrs. Kelly invited public comment.
Mr. Christopher Jerome noted that he believes the board has failed the children in their decision to accept

Mrs. Wallace’s resignation. Mr. Jerome inquired as to the presence of the Four Cornerstones in decision
making and expressed concern over the District’s ability to retain talented leaders.

CLOSED SESSION

Mrs. Mindy Kelly entertained a motion to enter closed session for the purposes of considering specific
employee matters.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

5/24/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 6



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mr. Scott Wallace moved to enter closed session for the purposes of considering specific employee
matters. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Melissa Ross.

The motion carried with all yeses. One member was absent.

The Board left open session at 6:19 p.m.

The Board returned to open session at 6:23 p.m.

Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to approve the resignation agreement for Mrs. Kendra Wallace.

Mrs. Kelly moved to approve the resignation agreement for Mrs. Kendra Wallace. The motion was
seconded by Mrs. Danielle Boros.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall

Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The resignation agreement was approved by a vote of 4-1-1. One member was absent.

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved to enter closed session for the purposes of considering specific employee
matters. The motion was seconded by Mrs Melissa Ross.

The motion carried with all yeses. One member was absent.
The Board entered closed session at 6:24 p.m.
The Board returned to open session at 6:57 p.m. in Room 258.

Upon roll call, the following board members answered as being present:

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall

Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

5/24/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 6



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Also present were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

ADJOURNMENT

Mrs. Kelly entertained a motion to adjourn.

Mrs. Donna Keller moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:57 p.m. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Suzanne
Nelson.

The motion carried with all yeses. Two members were absent.
The meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m.

Attest for Distribution:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Mindy Kelly, President

ATTEST:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

5/24/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 6



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 18™ DAY OF JUNE 2018

The meeting was called to order by President Mindy Kelly at 5:08 p.m. Upon roll call, the following
board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mr. John Gottschall,
Mrs. Melissa Ross and Mrs. Danielle Boros. Mr. Scott Wallace and Mrs. Donna Keller were absent.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters and potential or probable litigation.

Mrs. Melissa Ross made a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters and potential or probable litigation. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Suzanne Nelson.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 5 to 0 with two members absent.

The Board entered closed session at 5:08 p.m.

The Board returned to open session at 7:47 p.m.

Upon roll call, the following board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Suzanne
Nelson, Mr. Scott Wallace, Mrs. Melissa Ross, Mr. John Gottschall, Mrs. Donna Keller and Mrs. Danielle
Boros.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO

Mrs. Kendra Wallace, Principal

Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary
Mr. Besset Sabourin, Director of Student Services

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/18/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 5



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Community: Mrs. Enza Fox, Mrs. Allison Drew (videographer), approximately 6 members of the
Kenilworth community

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mrs. Mindy Kelly invited public comment. There was none. Mrs. Kelly thanked Mrs. Wallace and Mr.
Sabourin for their service to The Joseph Sears School.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS

FOIA Report — Dr. LeRoy reviewed the FOIA requests made of the District since the last meeting. The
District received four unique FOIA requests since the last regular Board meeting. All FOIA requests were
responded to in a timely manner.

Superintendent’s Report — Dr. LeRoy reviewed her employee recruitment and retention report. Board
members discussed the report, specifically as it relates to the need for comparison data on employee
retention and the challenges of maintaining substitutes. Dr. LeRoy also discussed the board retreat. Mrs.
Dee Molinare from IASB will facilitate the self-evaluation. Board members will use a combination of
surveys and one-on-one phone interviews to prepare for the retreat. Board members discussed the
importance of spending time on culture and district vision during the retreat. The strategic retreat will take
place on July 10.

Dr. LeRoy led a discussion with the board on potential formats for community forums. Mrs. Kelly
suggested board members could reach out to the community to solicit feedback on the formatting of the
forums. Dr. LeRoy discussed the possibility of creating a community advisory committee composed of
Kenilworth residents, families and organizations. Mrs. Nelson and Mrs. Boros volunteered to work with
Dr. LeRoy to establish the committee.

Dr. LeRoy discussed the residency verification process. Dr. LeRoy noted that the District, which has
fewer residency verification compared to its neighbors, might consider moving toward annual residency
verification similar to many other surrounding districts. Dr. LeRoy discussed the residency verification
process. Board members noted a desire to fully articulate district residency processes and procedures in
writing.

Dr. LeRoy gave an update on the interim principal search. Dr. LeRoy noted that the District is in the pre-
screening process for candidates. An interim principal search committee composed of faculty,
administrators and community members will screen finalist candidates in early July.

Chief School Business Official’s Report — Dr. LeRoy reviewed the monthly financial statements and
investment reports and discussed the use of consultants. Mrs. Wallace discussed consultants as they relate

to instructional usage.

Principal’s Report — Mrs. Wallace reviewed the enrollment report and updated the board on professional
development offered to faculty and staff during the institute days at the end of the school year.

Director of Student Services’ Report — (None)

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/18/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

CONSENT AGENDA

Mrs. Kelly asked if there were any questions related to the consent agenda. Items B and D related to the
approval of minutes from the 5/16 and 5/24 board and personnel committee meetings were removed from
the agenda. Board policies 2:260 and 5:20 related to uniform grievance procedures and the prohibition of
workplace harassment were removed from the consent agenda.

There being no questions, Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to approve the consent agenda as amended.

Mprs. Suzanne Nelson moved to approve the consent agenda which includes approval of: minutes from the
June 4, 2018 special meeting and closed session, minutes from the May 21, 2018 regular meeting and
closed session, monthly financial report for May 2018, investment reports for May 2018, accounts
payable for May 22, 2018 to June 18, 2018, approval of family medial leave request for certified
employee, board policy revisions and associated resolutions for 2:120 School Board — Board Member
Development; 2:150 School Board - Committees; 5:100 General Personnel - Professional Development
Program; 7:20 Students - Harrassment of Students Prohibited; 7:180 Students - Prevention of and
Response to Bullying Intimidation and Harassment; 7:190 Student Behavior, 7:210 Students — Expulsion
Procedures and 7:250 Students — Student Support Services

The motion was seconded by Mr. Scott Wallace

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

OLD BUSINESS

Board Committee Reports — Mr. Wallace gave an update on the Village House on behalf of the finance
and facilities subcommittee. Mr. Wallace said the community meetings related to the presentation of the
Village House to the community were positive. The Intergovernmental Taskforce will soon begin
planning out fundraising efforts for the project.

Presentation of Annual Parent Survey Data — Mrs. Nelson and Mrs. Kelly gave a presentation on the
annual parent survey. Mrs. Kelly noted that as a whole, parent responses to questions regarding
administrative and board transparency and satisfaction shifted negatively compared to the prior year’s
data. A detailed recap of survey data will be shared with parents in the coming weeks.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/18/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendation to Hire Mrs. Terry Oquendo as 1.0 FTE
School Nurse — Mr. Sabourin gave a brief summary of Mrs. Oquendo’s professional background. Mr.
Sabourin noted that he is excited to have Mrs. Oquendo join the district.

Mrs. Melissa Ross moved to approve Mrs. Terry Oquendo as 1.0 FTE School Nurse. The motion was
seconded by Mr. Wallace.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

Discussion of and Potential Approval of Recommendation to Hire Mrs. Kathleen McGowan as 1.0
FTE Student Services Teacher — Mr. Sabourin gave a summary of Mrs. McGowan’s professional
background. Mr. Sabourin noted that he is excited to have Mrs. McGowan join the district. Mr. Sabourin
noted that Mrs. McGowan’s position was added to increase continuity of services across grade levels.

Mrs. Melissa Ross moved to approve Mrs. Kathleen McGowan as 1.0 FTE Student Services Teacher. The
motion was seconded by Mr. John Gottschall.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.
Discussion of and Potential Approval of District Treasurer, Ms. Zuica Donev — Dr. LeRoy noted that

as part of a system of financial checks and balances, Ms. Donev would take over the District treasurer
role.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/18/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mr. John Gottschall moved to approve Ms. Zuica Donev as District Treasurer. The motion was seconded
by Mr. Scott Wallace.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

OTHER BUSINESS

There was none.

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was none.

ADJOURNMENT

Mrs. Kelly entertained a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Scott Wallace moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:56 p.m. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Donna
Keller.

The motion carried with all yeses. The meeting adjourned at 9:56 p.m.

Attest for Distribution:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Mindy Kelly, President

ATTEST:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

6/18/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

MINUTES FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 10™ DAY OF JULY 2018

The meeting was called to order by President Mindy Kelly at 8:06 a.m. Upon roll call, the following
board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mrs. Donna Keller,
Mr. John Gottschall, Mrs. Melissa Ross and Mr. Scott Wallace. Mrs. Danielle Boros was absent.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters, board self evaluation and potential or probable litigation.

Mr. Scott Wallace made a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employees matters, board self evaluation and potential or probable litigation. The motion was seconded
by Mrs. Melissa Ross.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros

Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member absent.

The Board entered closed session at 8:06 a.m.

The Board returned to open session at 12:12 p.m.

Upon roll call, the following board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Suzanne
Nelson, Mrs. Donna Keller, Mr. John Gottschall, Mrs. Melissa Ross, Mrs. Danielle Boros and Mr. Scott
Wallace.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO
Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

Community: Mrs. Paget Bahr, Mrs. Julie Ruck

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

7/10/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

IMAGINING THE FUTURE: INITIAL PLANNING DISCUSSION OF THE SCHOOL’S VISION

Mr. Joe Holtgreive from Northwestern University led the board in a planning discussion about the long-
term vision for The Joseph Sears School.

Mr. Holtgreive had the board identify core concepts from among the District mission statement, Four
Cornerstones and Educational Philosophy that would be used to help form a vision. Board members
indicated that continuous growth and learning and community involvement were among the core concepts
to the long-term vision.

The board will utilize the core concepts to formulate a vision statement during the August strategic retreat
meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA

Mrs. Kelly asked if there were questions or concerns related to the Consent Agenda. There being none,
Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.

Mr. John Gottschall moved to approve the Consent Agenda to include the approval of: resolution to
adopt the 2018 Prevailing Wage Rages, authorization for bill reviewer to approve payment of accounts
payable for June, July and August 2018.

The motion was seconded by Mr. Scott Wallace.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion and Approval of Standard Form of Agreement Between Kenilworth School District No. 38 and
DLA Architects for Village House Replacement — Mr. Wallace summarized the steps taken to this point in
the Village House Replacement Project and discussed the agreement between the District and DLA. Mr.
Wallace noted that DLA will receive 8 percent of the project cost as compensation. Mr. Wallace noted
that the estimate of all costs related to the project is $10 million with roughly $9 million dedicated to
building construction. Mr. Wallace said the project will be financed by the District ($5 million), the
Joseph Sears School Foundation ($1 million) and private fundraising ($4 million). After discussion, Mrs.
Kelly called for a motion to approve the agreement.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

7/10/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mr. John Gottschall moved to approve the Standard Form of Agreement Between Kenilworth School
District No. 38 and DLA Architects for Village House Replacement. The motion was seconded by Mrs.
Suzanne Nelson.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 6 to 0 with one member abstaining.

Discussion of Second Retreat and Summer Community Forum Dates — Dr. LeRoy led a discussion on
potential dates for the second board retreat and community forum. Board members agreed to hold the
dates of August 13 and August 14. A determination of the final dates will be made based on the
availability of the retreat facilitators.

Discussion of Community Forum Planning Process — Dr. LeRoy led the board in a discussion about the
format of the community forums. After discussion, the board agreed to conduct two forums: one with
board and community members only and one with the administrative team, board members and the
community.

ADJOURNMENT

Mrs. Kelly entertained a motion to adjourn.

Mrs. Donna Keller moved to adjourn the meeting at 2:57 p.m. The motion was seconded by Mr. Scott
Wallace.

The motion carried with all yeses.
The meeting adjourned at 2:57 p.m.

Attest for Distribution:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Mindy Kelly, President

ATTEST:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

7/10/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

MINUTES FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 23"° DAY OF JULY 2018

President Mindy Kelly called the meeting to order at 4:04 p.m. Upon roll call, the following board
members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Danielle Boros, Mr. John Gottschall, Mrs.
Suzanne Nelson, and Mr. Scott Wallace. Mrs. Donna Keller and Mrs. Melissa Ross were absent.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO
Mrs. Julie Campanaro, Executive Assistant to the Administration

Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters and potential or probable litigation.

Mr. Scott Wallace made a motion to go into closed session at 4:05 p.m. to consider information related to
specific employee matters and potential or probable litigation. Mr. John Gottschall seconded the motion.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. John Gottschall
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Melissa Ross
Mr. Scott Wallace

The motion carried with a vote of 5 to 0 with two members absent.

The Board returned to open session at 5:08 p.m.

Upon roll call, the following board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Danielle
Boros, Mr. John Gottschall, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, and Mr. Scott Wallace. Mrs. Mrs. Donna Keller and
Mrs. Melissa Ross were absent.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO
Mrs. Julie M. Campanaro, Executive Assistant to the Administration

Visitors: Dr. LeViis Haney

PUBLIC COMMENT

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Special Meeting Minutes 07/23/18 Page 1 of 3



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mrs. Mindy Kelly invited public comment. There was none.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion of and Potential Recommendation to Approve Employment Contract for Dr. LeViis
Haney - Mrs. Kelly welcomed Dr. LeViis Haney and invited Dr. LeRoy to lead the discussion regarding
the recommendation of his hire as Interim Principal. Dr. LeRoy began by outlining the process followed
in arriving at this recommendation. She then outlined the many fine qualities, extensive experience and
accomplishments of Dr. Haney, noting that he came highly recommended and was selected from a
talented field of candidates. She noted that he has been in education for 15+ years, including six years as a
principal and four years as a Dean of Students. Additionally she noted he has experience in K-12, which
is rare and will be extremely beneficial for our school structure. He has extensive experience in
curriculum evaluation, and is an experienced leader, with the ability to bring out the strengths of all
involved and build a consensus.

Members of the Board stated their confidence that he would be an exceptional leader.
Mrs. Mindy Kelly entertained a motion to approve the employment contract for Dr. LeViis Haney.

Mr. John Gottschall moved, seconded by Mr. Scott Wallace to approve the employment contract for Dr.
LeViis Haney as Interim Principal.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mr. John Gottschall
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Melissa Ross
Mr. Scott Wallace

Roll call 5 yea 2 absent, motion approved
Dr. Haney was invited to speak. He complimented the district’s history and status and stated he looks
forward to being a part of the team. He thanked Dr. LeRoy and the Board for their confidence and

support. He stated he will begin his tenure by listening, and learning from all stake holders and welcomes
the opportunity to help the Joseph Sears School achieve their goals.

OTHER BUSINESS

Mrs. Suzanne Nelson noted that she would like to discuss the upcoming August 14 Community Forum at
a future time.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Special Meeting Minutes 07/23/18 Page 2 of 3



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

PUBLIC COMMENT

There was none.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Mrs. Kelly entertained a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Scott Wallace moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. John Gottschall seconded the motion.
The motion carried with all yeses.

The meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m.

Attest for Distribution:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Mindy Kelly, President

ATTEST:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Special Meeting Minutes 07/23/18 Page 3 of 3



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

MINUTES FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
KENILWORTH SCHOOL DISTRICT NUMBER 38, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
THE 14™ DAY OF AUGUST 2018

The meeting was called to order by President Mindy Kelly at 8:08 a.m. Upon roll call, the following
board members answered as being present: Mrs. Mindy Kelly, Mrs. Suzanne Nelson, Mrs. Donna Keller,
Mr. John Gottschall, Mrs. Melissa Ross and Mr. Scott Wallace. Mrs. Danielle Boros was absent.

Also in attendance were:

Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/CSBO

Dr. Lisa Leali, Chief Education Officer

Ms. Zuica Donev, Director of Student Services
Dr. LeViis Haney, Interim Principal

Mr. Chike Erokwu, Board Secretary

VISION AND CULTURE: LOOKING FORWARD TO BUILDING THE FUTURE

Mr. Joe Holtgreive and Dr. Gail Berger from Northwestern University led the board in a discussion about
formulating the long-term vision for The Joseph Sears School.

The board temporarily adjourned for lunch at 11:36 a.m.
The board returned at 12:11 p.m. All board members and administrators initially present returned.

Utilizing the concepts of continuous growth and learning as well as community involvement, the board
and the administrative team drafted the following vision statement:

“To be an intentionally innovative learning community that holds itself to the highest standards of
academic excellence and personal well-being.”

Board members began a discussion on culture at The Joseph Sears School.

Dr. Berger and Mr. Holtgreive will return to Kenilworth in the fall to further facilitate discussion on
school culture.

The Board will begin the process of communicating the vision and the remaining elements of the strategic
plan with the Kenilworth community. The vision will be shared with the community during the
community forum set to take place later in the evening. A portrait of a Sears graduate will also be
developed with input from community members.

Mrs. Keller and Mrs. Nelson will work with the Administration to articulate associated elements of the
strategic plan through communication materials.

Mrs. Boros arrived at 2:18 p.m.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

8/14/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

OLD BUSINESS

Discussion of Communication Expectations of the Community Forums — Dr. LeRoy led the board in a
discussion on communication expectations for the community forums.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion and Approval of Standard Form of Agreement and Memorandum of Understanding Between
Kenilworth School District No. 38 and DLA Architects for Village House Replacement — Mr. Wallace
noted that the District will look to sign a memorandum of understanding with DLA Architects in order to
proceed with the Village House Replacement Project. Mr. Wallace noted that the contract stipulates that
the District will not be liable for any future payments to DLA until the private funds have been raised for
the project.

Several board members noted some concerns as to the District’s financial liability for the project.

Mr. John Gottschall moved to approve the Standard Form of Agreement and Memorandum of
Understanding Between Kenilworth School District No. 38 and DLA Architects for Village House
Replacement. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Donna Keller.

Roll Call:
Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros
Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 5 to 0 with two members abstaining.

CLOSED SESSION

Mrs. Kelly called for a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employee matters and potential or probable litigation.

Mr. John Gottschall made a motion to go into closed session to consider information related to specific
employees matters and potential or probable litigation. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Melissa Ross.

Roll Call:

Yes No Absent Abstain
Mrs. Danielle Boros

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

8/14/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 « 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Mrs. Suzanne Nelson
Mrs. Mindy Kelly
Mrs. Donna Keller
Mr. John Gottschall
Mr. Scott Wallace
Mrs. Melissa Ross

The motion carried with a vote of 7 to 0 with one member absent.
The Board entered closed session at 3:08 p.m.

The Board returned to open session at 3:55 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT

Mrs. Kelly entertained a motion to adjourn.

Mr. John Gottschall moved to adjourn the meeting at 3:55 p.m. The motion was seconded by Mrs. Donna
Keller.

The motion carried with all yeses.
The meeting adjourned at 3:55 p.m.

Attest for Distribution:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

Approved:

Mindy Kelly, President

ATTEST:
Chike Erokwu, Secretary

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT
8/14/18 Kenilworth Board of Education Open Session Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3



Board of Education
2018-2019 School Year Proposed Meeting Dates
Kenilworth School District No. 38

Presented August 20, 2018

Committee of the Whole Meeting Schedule

Wednesday, October 17, 2018
Thursday, January 31, 2019
Thursday, March 7, 2019

Thursday, May 2, 2019

The Kenilworth Board of Education also meets as a Committee of the Whole to discuss
or deliberate on board affairs. Committee of the Whole meetings typically begin at 5 p.m.
unless otherwise specified.



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

To:  Kenilworth School District No. 38 Board of Education
From: Dr. Crystal LeRoy, Superintendent/Chief School Business Official
Date: August 20, 2018

Re:  Presentation of Strategic Implementation Plan, Objectives and Indicators

Background

The Board and the Administration have been developing the Strategic Plan since April 2017. In
the spring of 2018, the Board of Education adopted the following:

Mission Statement
The Joseph Sears School empowers children to pursue their passions, reach their full potential
and embrace a spirit of curiosity, creativity and courage.

Educational Philosophy

The Joseph Sears School believes that personalized learning is essential to the intellectual, social
and emotional development of children. Sears provides children with educational experiences
that inspire curiosity, develop critical thinking skills and allow for exploration and development
of individual talents and abilities. By delivering education in an intimate learning environment,
educators connect individually with children to help them reach their full potential and develop a
lifelong love of learning.

Sears provides children with opportunities to express themselves and think creatively about their
surroundings through a comprehensive liberal arts education paired with traditions celebrated by
our school and village. Sears prepares children to become courageous advocates for themselves
and others within a supportive community centered on the Four Cornerstones of Responsibility,
Kindness, Honesty and Respect. Through continuous growth and learning in these areas, children
develop the skills needed to lead lives of purpose, personal fulfillment and success.

Core Values
» Personalized learning model
» Four Cornerstones
» Small, collaborative learning community
+ Continuous growth and learning

Strategic Goals
+ Student Advancement
+ *Personnel Development & Retention

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



) THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

* *Community Partnerships
+ Fiscal and Operational Responsibility
* Learning Environment

*Key areas of focus for the 2018-2019 school year
2018-2019 Proposed Objectives and Goals

With the recently adopted mission statement and educational philosophy, the Administrative
Cabinet has been collaborating on the Strategic Implementation Plan since late spring. At the
recent Board of Education retreat, the Board developed a tentative vision statement:

“To be an intentionally innovative learning community
that holds itself to the highest standards of
academic excellence and personal well-being”

With the newly created vision statement, the Administrative Cabinet was equipped to
systematically and comprehensively align all facets of the District to the Vision, Mission and
Educational Philosophy. Based on the tentative FY 19 Objectives that were presented in May and
focusing on the two key areas of focus, the Administrative Cabinet is pleased to present the
following 2018-2019 Objectives and Indicators:

1. Student Advancement

Provide students with curriculum, instruction and assessment that fosters growth and
challenges them in keeping with the mission and educational philosophy of The Joseph Sears
School

Objective Indicators

Indicator 1.1.1 The Board Governance Team shall
engage the entire Kenilworth community to develop
a Profile of a Sears Graduate, detailing the specific
competencies for students graduating from The
Joseph Sears School no later than 11/30/18.

Objective 1.1: Conduct a
comprehensive evaluation of District
education delivery model to ensure
alignment of curriculum, instruction
and assessment to the core values,

glclflzl(())ln and vision of The Joseph Sears Indicator 1.1.2 The Cabinet shall jointly produce an

educational delivery audit detailing a comprehensive
evaluation of the District’s educational delivery
model no later than 11/30/18.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT



THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL

Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Indicator 1.1.3 The Cabinet shall develop an action
plan to address the findings of the educational
delivery audit (Indicator 1.1.2) no later than 5/30/19.

Indicator 1.1.4 The Cabinet shall share findings of
the audit and the profile of a graduate (Indicators
1.1.1 & 1.1.2) with the community and provide
opportunities for feedback no later than 5/30/19.

Objective 1.2 Define stakeholder
expectations for operating within a
school district that embraces a spirit of
curiosity, creativity, courage and
student-centered decision making.

Indicator 1.2.1 The Cabinet shall research and
recommend a survey instrument for faculty and staff
that captures expectations for operating in
accordance with the District mission and philosophy

no later than 11/30/18.

Indicator 1.2.2 The Cabinet shall include a needs
assessment of culture and climate perception data

from past surveys in the educational delivery audit
no later than 11/30/18.

Indicator 1.2.3 The Cabinet shall develop and
communicate an action plan to address the
challenges indicated in the needs culture and climate
needs assessment (as indicated in the educational
delivery audit) (Indicator 1.2.2) and to ensure that all
students, faculty and staff have clarity on operational

expectations which are aligned to the strategic plan
no later than 5/30/19.

2. Personnel Development & Retention

Hire, develop and retain high-performing faculty and staff that embrace continuous
improvement in service of Sears students

Objective Indicators

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT




THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Objective 2.1: Develop internal
system among all grade levels and
departments (JK-8) in order to
retain and support faculty and staff
and more effectively deliver
student instruction.

Indicator 2.1.1 The Cabinet shall work with faculty and
staff to evaluate and refine internal committee structure,

including purpose, committee goals and membership, no
later than 10/1/18.

Indicator 2.1.2 The Cabinet shall continuously monitor
the effectiveness of a refined committee structure through
monthly feedback from Team Coordinators throughout
the 2018-2019 school year.

Indicator 2.1.3 The Cabinet shall conduct an assessment
of the collaborative relationship between general
education and student services departments through the
educational delivery audit. The assessment shall include
an articulation of roles, responsibilities and a system of
communications between general education and student
services teachers. The assessment shall be completed no
later 11/30/18.

Indicator 2.1.4 The Cabinet shall begin preliminary
research into the development of a digital solution for
communicating policies, procedures, job descriptions to
faculty and staff no later than 6/30/19.

Objective 2.2: Ensure adequate
and high-quality classroom
coverage throughout the building
s0 as to maintain continuity of
education in the event of teacher
absences.

Indicator 2.2.1 The Cabinet shall utilize data on substitute
coverage in order to develop a plan in collaboration with
teachers to ensure all students receive quality instruction
everyday. The plan, which incorporates research-based
strategies for increasing the sub pool and reducing the
reliance on instructional assistants, shall be developed no
later than 2/1/19.

3. Community Partnerships

Engage all Sears families and community organizations to communicate and collaborate in a
respectful and transparent manner

Objective

Indicators

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT




THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL

Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Objective 3.1: Develop strategies for
leveraging the talents, experiences and
expertise of residents to enhance and
support the educational delivery
model.

Indicator 3.1.1 The Cabinet shall conduct a needs
assessment of community engagement opportunities
throughout the educational delivery model in order to
leverage the talents, expertise of our parents and
community members no later than 5/30/19.

Objective 3.2: Increase community
trust and involvement in The Joseph
Sears School by providing the
Kenilworth community with
opportunities for dialogue and
engagement.

Indicator 3.2.1 The Board Governance Team shall
hold meaningful monthly opportunities to gather
community input and involve the community in the
priorities of the District throughout the 2018-2019
school year.

Indicator 3.2.2 The Superintendent shall actively
recruit community members and organizations to
form a community advisory committee to weigh in
and discuss significant matters of The Joseph Sears
School. The committee shall be formed no later than
9/28/18.

Indicator 3.2.3 The Cabinet shall arrange a
community social gathering that involves planning
and participation from students, faculty and
community members no later than 4/13/19.

Indicator 3.2.4 The Cabinet shall utilize data and/or
community feedback to evaluate the success of the
community social gathering no later than 6/1/19.

4. Fiscal and Operational Responsibility

Maintain a solid short- and long-term financial position while investing in resources and
infrastructure that align with educational priorities

Objective

Indicator

Objective 4.1: Align the Sears educational

delivery model, internal systems and
infrastructure in order to ensure all
operations are efficient and effective.

Indicator 4.1.1 The Cabinet shall evaluate the

on ways to improve general internal operations by
5/1/19.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT

existing internal systems and procedures and report




THE JOSEPH SEARS SCHOOL
Office of the Superintendent/Chief School Business Official

542 Abbotsford Road « Kenilworth, IL 60043 + 847.256.5006 * kenilworth38.org

Indicator 4.1.2 The Cabinet shall provide faculty
with professional development as needed in order
to support the most effective use renovated spaces
as they relate to classroom instruction.

Indicator 4.1.3 The Cabinet shall keep all
stakeholders involved in the development and
progress toward projects outlined in the master
facilities plan throughout the 2018-2019 school
year.

At tonight’s meeting we will discuss the short-term objectives and indicators of the strategic
plan, as well as the long-term strategic goals.

Next Steps

= 8/20: Present SY18-19 Objectives and Indicators
= 9/24: Present Strategic Plan for Approval and Adoption
- Formally Adopt into District Policy
— Includes Board Vision
- Final Version of SY18-19 Objectives and Indicators
= Early October: Communicate final version of Strategic Plan to Kenilworth Community

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding this report, please do not hesitate to contact
me.

RESPONSIBILITY, KINDNESS, HONESTY, RESPECT




	KSD38 Regular Meeting Agenda for 082018
	Superintendent's Report 082018
	JSSCAC Proposal 082018
	CSBO Report 082018
	FY19 Budget Memo 082018
	June 2018 Investment Report 082018
	Investment Certification Statement CL - June 2018
	Investments - June 2018

	June 2018 Monthly Financials 082018
	Monthly Financial - Title Page
	June Financials
	Balance Sheet June 2018
	Balance Sheet - June 2018
	Cash and Investments - June 2018

	Minutes 5-16-18 (Open Session)
	Minutes 5-24-18 (Open Session)
	Minutes 6-18-18 (Open Session)
	Minutes 7-10-18 (Open Session)
	Minutes 7-23-18 (Open Session)
	Minutes 8-14-18 (Open Session)
	Board of Education COW Schedule FY19
	SY19 Objectives and Indicators 082018

